Public Document Pack

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

At the Meeting of the Council of the City of Westminster held at 7.00 pm on Wednesday 9th November, 2016 at Porchester Hall, Porchester Road, Bayswater, London W2 5DU.

PRESENT

The Lord Mayor, Councillor Steve Summers

COUNCILLORS

Heather Acton Ian Adams Nickie Aiken Julia Alexander Barbara Arzymanow

Daniel Astaire Richard Beddoe Rita Begum David Boothroyd

Iain Bott

Susie Burbridge Ruth Bush Melvyn Caplan Danny Chalkley Paul Church Brian Connell

Baroness Philippa Couttie

Antonia Cox
Thomas Crockett
Peter Cuthbertson
Robert Davis, MBE, DL

Tony Devenish
Paul Dimoldenberg

Nick Evans Christabel Flight Jean Paul Floru Peter Freeman Murad Gassanly Jonathan Glanz Barbara Grahame Angela Harvey David Harvey Richard Holloway

Adam Hug Louise Hyams Aicha Less

Patricia McAllister Guthrie McKie Tim Mitchell

Adnan Mohammed Gotz Mohindra Jan Prendergast Papya Qureshi Suhail Rahuja Robert Rigby Rachael Robathan Glenys Roberts

Tim Roca Ian Rowley

Karen Scarborough Shamim Talukder Barrie Taylor Cameron Thomson

Judith Warner
Jacqui Wilkinson
Jason Williams

1 APPOINTMENT OF RELIEF CHAIRMAN

Motion moved by the Lord Mayor and seconded by Councillor Tim Mitchell that Councillor Angela Harvey be elected as Relief Chairman.

Motion put, and on a show of hands, declared **CARRIED**.

2 MINUTES

The Minutes of the proceedings at the Annual Council meeting held on Wednesday 13 July 2016 were, with the assent of the Members present, signed by the Lord Mayor as a true record of the proceedings.

3 LORD MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

- 3.1 The Lord Mayor, on behalf of the Council, congratulated the Leader on being made a Life Peer.
- 3.2 The Lord Mayor welcomed the Youth MP, Hamza Taouzzle to the meeting. Hamza then addressed the meeting.

4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

4.1 There were none.

5 PETITIONS AND DEPUTATIONS (IF ANY)

5.1 There were none.

6 QUESTIONS

6.1 The questions, supplementary questions and replies are included in the recording on the Council's website.

7 COUNCILLOR ISSUES

(a) Animal Welfare in Westminster

Councillor Jacqui Wilkinson spoke and Councillor Nickie Aiken replied.

(b) Young Carers

Councillor Ruth Bush spoke and Councillor Danny Chalkley replied.

8 STATEMENT ON URGENT MATTERS

There were no urgent matters.

9 FUTURE POLICY PLAN/NOTICE OF MOTION

9.1 The meeting debated the items chosen for debate from the Future Policy Plan by the Majority Party – Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Sustainability and Transformation Plan. The debate will be referred to the relevant Executive Director for consideration when next reporting on the subject.

10. NOTICE OF MOTION

The Majority Party had selected for debate the Notice of Motion – Housing, Regeneration which was moved by Councillor Daniel Astaire and seconded by Councillor Susie Burbridge.

Councillor Tim Roca moved and it was seconded by Councillor Aicha Less that the Notice of Motion be amended, as follows:

To be added at end of Notice of Motion:

"The Council will work in consultation with residents and ensure that such regeneration proposals are supported by a ballot of those residents affected.

The Council will ensure that regeneration includes significant new social and genuinely affordable housing for rent, in addition to replacing existing homes, so that low and middle income families have access to good quality housing and so the Council can reduce the number of residents living in overcrowded and temporary accommodation. The Council should explore innovative options for the provision of new private homes in the regeneration areas, such as building for private rent, to ensure much needed homes are not left empty and that these properties contribute to an active community.

All models will be looked at including low cost rental opportunities that allow low income families to access good quality housing for those living in overcrowded and temporary accommodation.

The Council will speed up regeneration projects in view of the significant delays already experienced in Church Street and Ebury Bridge, whilst being mindful of genuine consultation with residents as stated above".

After debate, to which Councillor Daniel Astaire replied, the Lord Mayor put the amendment moved by Councillor Roca and seconded by Councillor Less to the vote and on a show of hands declared the amendment **LOST**.

The Lord Mayor then put the original motion to the vote and on a show of hands declared the motion **ADOPTED**.

RESOLVED:

That this Council notes the estate regeneration undertaken. In the context of the national housing shortage, this Council recognises the opportunity created by this

regeneration work and the potential for future regeneration projects within our estates and property holdings.

The Council will continue to look for ways to maximise what can be delivered in these areas, look at further regeneration opportunities as well as encouraging the private sector to deliver more intermediate housing proposals to help the local workforce.

This Council is committed to taking a proactive approach to regeneration and is open to further, credible private sector funding for regeneration. The projects which the Council has delivered and is delivering at the moment demonstrate the authority's commitment to quality housing regeneration schemes to deliver market housing and affordable housing, including intermediate housing, in areas of real need across the City.

11. NOTICE OF MOTION - LIBRARIES

The Minority Party had selected for debate the Notice of Motion – Libraries as set out on the Agenda. The Notice of Motion was moved by Councillor Adam Hug and seconded by Councillor Paul Dimoldenberg.

Councillor David Harvey moved and it was seconded by Councillor Richard Holloway that the Notice of Motion – Libraries be amended, as follows:

Delete first paragraph. Amend first sentence in first sentence of second paragraph as follows:

The Council believes that our librarians (add: and all of our library staff) form an essential part of the library service, their expertise, dedication and passion for reading and learning help make Westminster's libraries a hugely valued part of our community, (add: backed up by the support of excellent volunteers).

Delete remaining paragraphs and add:

This Council is proud that Westminster has probably the finest library services in London, with first class professional staff, supported by terrific community volunteers and with the highest funding per resident of any council in the country. The Council will continue to employ an excellent team with the right skills, knowledge and experience to deliver a high quality service. Reflecting the Council's commitment to the service, it notes that no one is far from one of our 12 libraries. Working with the constraints of the financial climate, this Council, unlike so many others, has no plans either to close libraries or to cut the current long opening hours residents want. This Council knows libraries provide an essential service and bring communities together and will provide fine future services.

After debate, to which Councillor Adam Hug replied, the Lord Mayor put the amendment moved by Councillor David Harvey and seconded by Councillor Richard Holloway to the vote and on a show of hands declared the Motion **CARRIED.**

The Lord Mayor put the Motion, as amended, to the vote on a show of hands and declared the amended Motion **ADOPTED.**

Resolved:

The Council believes that our librarians and all of our library staff form an essential part of the library service, their expertise, dedication and passion for reading and learning help make Westminster's libraries a hugely valued part of our community backed up by the support of excellent volunteers.

This Council is proud that Westminster has probably the finest library services in London, with first class professional staff, supported by terrific community volunteers and with the highest funding per resident of any council in the country. The Council will continue to employ an excellent team with the right skills, knowledge and experience to deliver a high quality service. Reflecting the Council's commitment to the service, it notes that no one is far from one of our 12 libraries. Working with the constraints of the financial climate, this Council, unlike so many others, has no plans either to close libraries or to cut the current long opening hours residents want. This Council knows libraries provide an essential service and bring communities together and will provide fine future services.

10 CABINET MEMBER/COMMITTEE REPORT

Pension Fund Committee: The Council noted the Annual Report.

Report of the Cabinet Member for Built Environment: Adoption of the Special Policy Areas and Policies Map Revision to the Westminster City Plan:

Resolved: That the recommendations be adopted.

Report of the General Purposes Committee: Updates to Standing Orders:

Resolved: That the recommendations be adopted.

Report of the General Purposes Committee: Programme of full Council Meetings 2017-2018

Resolved: That the recommendations be adopted.

13. The meeting ended at 9.55pm

| CHAIRMAN: | DATF: |
|-----------|-------|
| CHAIINMAN | DAIL |

